CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the **Southern Planning Committee** held on Wednesday, 23rd November, 2016 at Council Chamber, Municipal Buildings, Earle Street, Crewe CW1 2BJ

PRESENT

Councillor G Merry (Chairman)

Councillors Rhoda Bailey, D Bebbington, P Butterill, W S Davies, S Edgar, S Gardiner (for Cllr Clowes), A Kolker, J Rhodes, B Roberts and B Walmsley

NON-COMMITTEE MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillors D Bailey, M Deakin, J Hammond and D Hough

OFFICERS PRESENT

Daniel Evans (Principal Planning Officer)
Patricia Evans (Senior Planning and Highways Lawyer)
Andrew Goligher (Principal Development Control Officer - Highways)
Phil Mason (Senior Enforcement Officer - Environmental Protection)
Sue Orrell (Principal Planning Officer)
Julie Zientek (Democratic Services Officer)

Apologies

Councillor M J Weatherill

Apologies due to Council Business

Councillor J Clowes

77 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST/PRE DETERMINATION

The following declarations were made in the interests of openness:

With regard to application number 16/4268N, Councillor D Bebbington declared that he would be leaving the meeting early in order to attend a meeting at Bentley Motors Ltd. He had not discussed this application, nor was he going to discuss planning at the meeting.

With regard to agenda item number 14, Councillor S Edgar declared that, as he had made up his mind and had previously spoken against the application, he would leave the meeting prior to consideration of this item.

All Members of the Committee declared that they had received email correspondence with regard to application number 16/3664N.

With regard to application number 16/2645C, Councillor G Merry declared that she was a member of Sandbach Town Council, which had been consulted on the application. She had not discussed this application and had kept an open mind.

Councillor G Merry also declared that she had received email correspondence with regard to application number 16/2010N.

With regard to application numbers 16/2993N and 16/4736C, Councillor J Hammond, who was in attendance at the meeting, declared that he was a member of Haslington Parish Council, which had been consulted on the applications.

With regard to application numbers 16/2993N and 16/4736C, Councillor D Hough, who was in attendance at the meeting, declared that he was a member of Alsager Town Council, which had been consulted on the applications. In addition, he declared that he was a Director of Transport Service Solutions Ltd.

78 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2016 be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

79 16/2645C ELMBANK HOUSE, LODGE ROAD, SANDBACH, CHESHIRE CW11 3HP: OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR DEMOLITION OF ALL EXISTING ON SITE STRUCTURES AND THE REDEVELOPMENT OF THE SITE FOR 50 RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS (USE CLASS C3) WITH ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING AND VEHICULAR ACCESS FROM LODGE ROAD FOR BRUCE LEDWITH. THORNHILL HOLDINGS LTD

Note: Ms R Harris attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on behalf of the applicant.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to a S106 Agreement to secure:
- 30% on site affordable housing provision
- £130,741.52 towards Secondary education
- £17,328 towards the upgrade of the AGS and Children's and Young Persons Play Space on Thornbrook Way and £50,010 for its maintenance
- Management company to maintain any landscaping areas within the site and the acoustic barrier

And the following conditions:

- 1. Time 3 years of within 2 of last Reserved Matter approval
- 2. Reserved Matters within 3 years
- 3. Layout, Scale, Appearance and Landscaping Matters to be submitted and approved
- 4. Plans
- 5. The First reserved matters application include detailed landscape masterplan which should include some planting between the development and the industrial estate to screen or filter views, as well as full hard and soft landscape details and boundary treatments
- 6. Prior submission/approval of a detailed Badger Mitigation Statement and a detailed Ecological Enhancements Statement
- 7. The First reserved matters application shall be supported by a Tree Protection Scheme and a detailed Arboricultural method statement which accords with the requirements of BS5837:2012
- 8. Prior submission/approval of a Construction Management Plan
- 9. Prior submission/approval of a surface water drainage strategy/scheme
- 10. Prior submission/approval of storm period and intensity details and mitigation
- 11. Foul and surface water be drained on separate systems
- 12. Prior submission/approval of a sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan
- 13. All dwelling proposed on the Lodge Road site frontage shall comprise of internal arrangements that ensure that the principal habitable rooms of the dwellings (lounges, living rooms, bedrooms) are located to the rear of the dwellings
- 14. The First Reserved Matters shall be accompanied by a detailed acoustic mitigation scheme and updated acoustic report. The acoustic mitigation scheme shall include a detailed site layout and specific mitigation for each property
- 15. Prior submission/approval of an Environmental Management Plan
- 16. The First Reserved Matters shall include details of electric vehicle charging provision for each property
- 17. Prior submission/approval of a Residents Travel Information Pack
- 18. Prior submission/approval of a Phase II contaminated land report
- 19. Prior submission/approval of a soil verification report for imported material
- 20. Works should stop if contamination is found during development
- 21. Prior submission/approval of a scheme of signage for pedestrians and cyclists within the red-edge boundary
- 22. Details of the existing and proposed levels to provided as part of the first reserved matters application
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern

Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads Of Terms:
- 30% on site affordable housing provision
- £130,741.52 towards Secondary education
- £17,328 towards the upgrade of the AGS and Children's and Young Persons Play Space on Thornbrook Way and £50,010 for its maintenance
- Management company to maintain any landscaping areas within the site and the acoustic barrier

80 16/2993N LAND ADJACENT TO 68, CLOSE LANE, ALSAGER: PROPOSED OUTLINE RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF 16 NO. DWELLINGS WITH ACCESS AND LAYOUT APPLIED FOR, FOR PEMBROKE HOMES LTD & NICHOLA JANE BEACH

Note: Councillor S Gardiner arrived at the meeting during consideration of this item and did not take part in the debate or vote.

Note: Councillor J Hammond (Ward Councillor), Councillors M Deakin and D Hough (Neighbouring Ward Councillors), Town Councillor S Helliwell (on behalf of Alsager Town Council), Mr P Swann (objector) and Ms E Robinson (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, a written update and an oral report of the site inspection.

RESOLVED

- (a) That authority be DELEGATED to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman of Southern Planning Committee, to APPROVE the application for the reasons set out in the report and the written update, subject to:
- clarification of the secondary education contribution and confirmation that all drainage conditions are included
- a S106 Agreement to secure:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision

- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Secondary Education Contribution (to be confirmed) Primary Education Contribution of £32,539
- Management Company and maintenance agreement in perpetuity for the incidental public open space, the pond and the tree belt to the north-western and south-western boundaries
- the following conditions:
- 1. Standard outline 1
- 2. Standard outline 2
- 3. Standard outline 3
- 4. Approved Plans
- 5. Electric Vehicle Infrastructure to be submitted and approved
- 6. Piling Details to be submitted and approved
- 7. Reserved matters application to include dust control measures
- 8. The noise mitigation measures to be as per the submitted report
- 9. Submission / Approval of Information regarding Contaminated Land
- 10. Any reserved matters application shall be supported by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) in accordance with Section 5.4 of BS5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction (Recommendations) which shall evaluate the direct and indirect impact effect of the proposed design on existing trees.
- 11. Reserved Matters application to include details of the existing and proposed land levels. No levels should be raised on site that may result in the flooding offsite.
- 12. Tree Protection Details to be submitted and approved
- 13. No development should commence on site until such time as detailed proposals for disposal of surface water (including a scheme for the onsite storage and regulated discharge) have been submitted to and agreed in writing
- 14. No development should commence on site until such time as detailed scheme for the management of overland flow from surcharging of the site's surface water drainage system and neighbouring land have been submitted to and agreed in writing
- 15. No development shall take place until a detailed design and associated management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site using sustainable drainage methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

- The drainage design must also include information about the designs storm period and intensity (1 in 30 & 1 in 100 (+30% allowance for Climate Change)) & any temporary storage facilities included, to ensure adequate drainage is implemented on site.
- 16. The drainage for the development hereby approved, shall be carried out in accordance with principles set out in the submitted Drainage Strategy Report (Ref No. P5664, Dated 14th March 2016pared by HR Wallingford). For the avoidance of doubt no surface water will be permitted to drain directly or indirectly into the public sewer. Any variation to the discharge of foul shall be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.
- 17. Reserved Matters application to include a sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local planning authority and agreed in writing. The sustainable drainage management and maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:
 - Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, or, management and maintenance by a management company; and
 - b) Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout its lifetime.
- 18. Nesting bird survey measures to be submitted and approved
- 19. Any future reserved matters application to be supported by proposals for the incorporation of features into the scheme suitable for use by breeding birds
- 20. Any future reserved matters application to be supported by proposals for the incorporation of gaps for hedgehogs to be incorporate into any garden or boundary fencing proposed
- 21. Updated badger survey to be undertaken and submitted in support of any reserved matters application
- 22. Replacement pond as shown on the site layout plan to be provided and retained
- 23. The reserved matters application shall include a landscaping plan for the site including mitigation for the loss of tree from the eastern boundary
- 24. The reserved matters application shall include a woodland management scheme for the trees to the north-western and south-western boundaries
- 25. Visibility splays as shown on the site plan to be provided and retained
- 26. Land levels
- 27. Provision of underground electricity cabling
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern

Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Secondary Education Contribution (to be confirmed) Primary Education Contribution of £32,539
- 3. Management Company and maintenance agreement in perpetuity for the incidental public open space, the pond and the tree belt to the north-western and south-western boundaries
- 81 16/4736C LAND TO THE WEST OF CLOSE LANE, ALSAGER: FULL PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE PROPOSAL OF 26 DWELLINGS (PHASE 2) A MIXED RESIDENTIAL SCHEME TO PROVIDE AFFORDABLE AND OPEN MARKET DWELLINGS ON LAND TO THE WEST OF CLOSE LANE, ALSAGER FOR MR BEN SUTTON, STEWART MILNE HOMES

Note: Councillor J Hammond (Ward Councillor) and Councillors M Deakin and D Hough (Neighbouring Ward Councillors) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, a written update and an oral report of the site inspection.

RESOLVED

(a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be REFUSED for the following reasons:

- The proposal will, by superseding the development required by Appeal 13/1305n, by virtue of the loss of dwellings for the over 55's, from the 56 units within a mixed residential scheme granted permission under 13/1305n to 6 units now proposed would comprise an unsustainable form of development, contrary to policy SC4 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy Proposed changes (consultation draft) March 2016 and policies contained within the NPPF. Furthermore the adverse impacts of granting planning permission would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of the proposal to housing land supply. As a result, the application of paragraph 14 of the Framework does not indicate that permission should be granted and the proposal would not represent sustainable development.
- The proposed siting and distribution of the affordable units, clustered to the southern portion of the site, together with their close proximity to the affordable units within the Phase 1 (as approved by 14/5114C) development at the site results in a lack of pepper-potting throughout the development site, which is contrary to Policy SC5 of the Cheshire East Local Plan Strategy Proposed changes (consultation draft) March 2016, the Interim Planning Statement on Affordable Housing and policies contained within the NPPF.
- Insufficient information has been provided concerning water voles and reptiles on the site to enable the Local Planning Authority to assess the implications of the development for these species. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy NE9 of the Crewe and Nantwich Adopted Replacement Local Plan 2011
- (b) That, in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Planning (Regulation) be granted delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Southern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.
- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads Of Terms:
- 30% of the dwellings to be affordable in a 65:35 split plots 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 15 (1 &2 bed bungalows) are to be provide as affordable rent units and plots 18 and 19 as intermediate units
- Education contribution £32,539 primary contribution and £49,028 secondary contribution

82 16/2010N LAND OFF OAK GARDENS, BUNBURY, CHESHIRE: OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT FOR 15 DWELLINGS WITH ASSOCIATED WORKS FOR MR NICHOLAS HOWARD, CRABTREE HOMES

Note: Councillor D Bebbington left the meeting prior to consideration of this application.

Note: Parish Councillor R Pulford (on behalf of Bunbury Parish Council), Mr P Gorman (objector) and Mr D Muir (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and an oral report of the site inspection.

RESOLVED

(a) That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

The proposed development would include a shared access with the constructed affordable housing scheme immediately adjoining which results in a scale and form of development which is not in keeping with the character of the village and will result in a conjoined form of development contrary to Policy H2 of the Bunbury Neighbourhood Plan.

- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.
- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms:
 - 1. £4517.20 towards off-site grassland habitat improvements
 - 2. £32,685.00 towards secondary school provision
 - 3. 30% on-site affordable housing provision

83 16/1402N LAND NORTH OF PARKERS ROAD, CREWE: OUTLINE PLANNING APPLICATION FOR THE ERECTION OF 17 RESIDENTIAL DWELLINGS FOR ADRIAN FABCZAK, BLOOR HOMES NORTH WEST LTD

Note: Prior to consideration of this application, the meeting was adjourned for refreshments.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report and the written update, the application be APPROVED subject to a S106 Agreement to secure:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Primary Education Contribution of £32,539

And the following conditions:

- 1. Standard outline 1
- 2. Standard outline 2 landscape details to include structural planting with the Gables
- 3. Standard outline 3
- 4. Approved Plans
- 5. Electric Vehicle Infrastructure to be submitted and approved
- 6. Construction Management Plan to be submitted and approved
- 7. Piling Details to be submitted and approved
- 8. Noise mitigation measures to be submitted and approved
- 9. Submission / Approval of Information regarding Contaminated Land
- 10. Any reserved matters application shall be supported by an Arboricultural Impact Assessment (AIA) in accordance with Section 5.4 of BS5837:2012 Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction (Recommendations) which shall evaluate the direct and indirect impact effect of the proposed design on existing trees.
- 11. Reserved Matters application to include details of the existing and proposed land levels
- 12. Tree Protection Details to be submitted and approved prior to any commencement on the site
- 13. No development should commence on site until such time as detailed proposals for disposal of surface water (including a scheme for the

- onsite storage and regulated discharge) have been submitted to and agreed in writing
- 14. Nesting bird mitigation measures to be submitted and approved
- 15. The reserved matters for the landscaping of the site shall include the replacement of any hedgerow which would be lost as part of the proposed development
- 16. The reserved matters shall provide 1 car parking space for dwellings with 1 bedroom and 2 car parking spaces for dwellings of 2 bedrooms or more
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.
- (c) That, should the application be subject to an appeal, approval be given to enter into a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms:
- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Primary Education Contribution of £32,539

84 16/4268N BENTLEY MOTORS LTD, PYMS LANE, CREWE, CHESHIRE CW1 3PL: INSTALLATION OF SOLAR PANELS ON A DEDICATED CAR PORTS SITUATED ON EXISTING CAR PARK FOR MR ANDREW ROBERTSON, BENTLEY MOTORS LTD

Note: Councillor A Kolker left the meeting prior to consideration of this application.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, for the reasons set out in the report, the application be APPROVED subject to the following conditions:
- 1. Time limit
- 2. Approved plans
- 3. Materials in accordance with the details submitted with the application
- 4. Construction Management Plan to include a staged construction of the development
- (b) That, in the event of any changes being needed to the wording of the Committee's decision (such as to delete, vary or add conditions/informatives/planning obligations or reasons for approval/refusal) prior to the decision being issued, the Head of Planning (Regulation) be granted delegated authority to do so in consultation with the Chairman of the Southern Planning Committee, provided that the changes do not exceed the substantive nature of the Committee's decision.

85 16/5038N 40, WEST STREET, CREWE CW1 3HA: PROPOSED CHANGE OF USE OF HAIRDRESSING SALON TO HOUSE OF MULTIPLE OCCUPATION FOR MR PAUL SAMUDA

Note: Councillor D Bailey (on behalf of the Ward Councillor) and Ms A Woodward (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

Note: Mr P Samuda (applicant) had registered his intention to address the Committee but was not in attendance at the meeting.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application, a written update and an oral report of the site inspection.

RESOLVED

(a) That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reason:

The proposal by virtue of the creation of poor living conditions for future residents and the overdevelopment of this site as a House of Multiple Occupation would be an unsuitable form of development contrary to Policy BE.1 of the Borough of Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan and the Cheshire East internal guidance in relation to HMOs. There are no material considerations which would outweigh the harm.

(b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be

delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

86 16/3664N THE WHITE LION, AUDLEM ROAD, HANKELOW CW3 0JA: DEMOLITION OF PUBLIC HOUSE AND ERECTION OF 5NO. FOUR-BEDROM DETACHED DWELLINGS FOR MR TIMOTHY GUTTRIDGE

Note: Prior to consideration of this application, the meeting was adjourned for a short break.

Note: The Principal Planning Officer read a representation from Councillor Rachel Bailey (Ward Councillor), who was unable to attend the meeting.

Note: Parish Councillor T Lee (on behalf of Hankelow Parish Council), Mr D Smith (objector) and Mr M Askew (on behalf of the applicant) attended the meeting and addressed the Committee on this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding the above planning application and a written update.

RESOLVED

- (a) That, contrary to the planning officer's recommendation for approval, the application be REFUSED for the following reasons:
- The proposed demolition of the Public House and loss of the Asset of Community Value and local community facility without adequate alternative facilities would be contrary to Policy CF3 (Retention of Community Facilities), the NPPF and Government Guidance concerning Assets of Community Value.
- 2. The proposed development by reason of its design and layout would detract from the pattern, character and appearance of the site and the area. The development would be contrary to Policy BE.2 (Design Standards) of the Crewe and Nantwich Replacement Local Plan 2011 and guidance contained within the NPPF.
- (b) That, in order to give proper effect to the Committee's intentions and without changing the substance of the decision, authority be delegated to the Head of Planning (Regulation), in consultation with the Chairman (or in her absence the Vice Chairman) of Southern Planning Committee, to correct any technical slip or omission in the wording of the resolution, between approval of the minutes and issue of the decision notice.

87 OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT OF UP TO 33 UNITS WITH ALL OTHERS MATTERS RESERVED, EXCEPT FOR ACCESS AND LANDSCAPING: LAND NORTH OF POOL LANE, WINTERLEY

The Committee considered a report regarding planning application 16/1728N, which had been refused against officer recommendation by the Southern Planning Committee on 31 August 2016. The committee report had referred to proposed Heads of Terms for a S106 Agreement, in the event that the application was subject to an appeal, but these had not been carried over into the minutes of the meeting.

RESOLVED – That a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms be entered into at the forthcoming appeal:

- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Provision of Public Open Space to be maintained by a private management company
- 3. Secondary School Education Contribution of £81,713.45

88 OUTLINE APPLICATION FOR THE DEMOLITION OF 46 CHESTNUT AVENUE, SHAVINGTON AND ERECTION OF 44 DWELLINGS (INCLUDING ACCESS) AND ASSOCIATED WORKS: LAND TO THE REAR OF 46 CHESTNUT AVENUE, SHAVINGTON CW2 5BJ

Note: Having declared that he had made up his mind, Councillor S Edgar left the meeting prior to consideration of this matter.

The Committee considered a report regarding planning application 16/0015N, which had been refused against officer recommendation by the Southern Planning Committee on 3 August 2016. The committee report had referred to proposed Heads of Terms for a S106 Agreement, in the event that the application was subject to an appeal, but these had not been carried over into the minutes of the meeting.

RESOLVED – That a S106 Agreement to secure the following Heads of Terms be entered into at the forthcoming appeal:

- 1. A scheme for the provision of 30% affordable housing 65% to be provided as social rent/affordable rent with 35% intermediate tenure. The scheme shall include:
- The numbers, type, tenure and location on the site of the affordable housing provision
- The timing of the construction of the affordable housing and its phasing in relation to the occupancy of the market housing
- The arrangements for the transfer of the affordable housing to an affordable housing provider or the management of the affordable housing if no Registered Social Landlord is involved
- The arrangements to ensure that such provision is affordable for both first and subsequent occupiers of the affordable housing; and
- The occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable housing and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced.
- 2. Provision of Public Open Space to be maintained by a private management company
- 3. SEN Contribution of £45,500

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 3.30 pm

Councillor G Merry (Chairman)